



# **Appendix 1**

# MINUTES OF COOKSTOWN TOWN CENTRE FORUM MEETING HELD WEDNESDAY 15 SEPTEMBER 2021 AT 12.30PM VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS

### Present:

Councillor McNamee Mid Ulster District Council
Councillor Wilson Mid Ulster District Council
Councillor Mallaghan Mid Ulster District Council
Sharon McGowan Department for Communities

Conall McKee DFI Roads NI

Ursula Marshall Cookstown Disability Forum

Annette McGahan Mid Ulster PCSP Andrew McConnell Large Retailer

Paul Wilson Large Independent Retailer

Mary McCullagh ) Mid Ulster District Council

Colin McKenna

In attendance: Deborah Ewing ) Mid Ulster District Council

### 1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received on behalf of Councillor Mark Glasgow and Councillor Wilbert Buchanan, Mid Ulster District Council; TP Sheehy, Small Independent Retailer; Bernie Sonner, Tenants Association; Sean MacMahon, Property Developer; John Downey, PSNI; Peter Beckett, Large Retailer; Fiona McKeown, Mid Ulster District Council.

## 2. MINUTES OF TOWN CENTRE FORUM MEETING 1 SEPTEMBER 2020

It was proposed by U Marshall and seconded by Cllr McNamee to ADOPT the minutes of the Town Centre Forum Meeting held on 1 September 2020.

### 3. MINUTES OF TOWN CENTRE FORUM MEETING 22 SEPTEMBER 2020

It was proposed by U Marshall and seconded by Cllr Wilson to ADOPT the minutes of the Town Centre Forum Meeting held on 22 September 2020.

### 4. MATTERS ARISING FROM MINUTES

There were no matters arising from the minutes.

# 5. UPDATE ON TOWN CENTRE RECOVERY PLAN/MID ULSTER TOWN CENTRE PROJECTS

M McCullagh advised members that the Government's High Street Voucher Scheme will open to applications on Monday 27 September 2021 and close Monday 25 October 2021. A phone line service will be available from Monday 11 October 2021. It is anticipated that cards will be issued to successful applicants between 5 and 7 days after applying. All vouchers must be spent by Tuesday 30 November 2021. She advised members that she will forward the link with the relevant information and requested that any queries or issues from traders are forwarded to Council to enable elected members to take them forward through the appropriate channels. The Council Chair will be issuing a news release encouraging the public to shop local. This will also be promoted across Council's social media sites.

The Town Centre Managers Progress Report had been circulated to members prior to the meeting. M McCullagh provided an update on Mid Ulster Town Centre Projects as follows:

# a) Marketing & Promotion

Support was provided for the initial re-opening of businesses in April 2021 following Covid-19 lockdown. This involved active engagement with local businesses to participate in the campaign and to encourage the local residents to reconnect with the towns and village centres. Marketing videos were developed and promoted on Council's social media platforms which focussed on the 'Welcome Back Campaign' and included the following sectors from across the Mid Ulster District:

- Close Contact Services (23 April 2021)
- Non Essential Retail & Outdoor Hospitality (30 April 2021)
- Hospitality (also press adverts 24 May 2021)

As we progress out of lockdown the message will change to 'Love Local Campaign' which will entail:

- Link to Public Health messaging
- Delivery of a wide range of marketing activities which will be linked to key retail periods and include outdoor advertising, social media videos and press adverts
- Promotion of Government's High Street Voucher Scheme

Council are currently providing music throughout each Saturday in September in Cookstown, Dungannon and Magherafelt town centres. The location for Cookstown is outside the vacant Boots site on James Street. Council staff will also be on each Saturday providing branded bags and facemasks to the public.

Cllr Wilson expressed concern on the location of the entertainment, stating that it is quite removed from the main thoroughfare and therefore not having the impact. M McCullagh advised that Council had initially sought to locate in the scene doc area of the Burnavon but due to Covid vaccine centre and events which required access this was not an option. Another option was Molesworth Plaza which members agreed was also too far removed.

Members requested that now Council have taken over the rights to the Saturday Market that there should be an initiative in place to promote the market and the town centre at the same time. Discussion took place on the rebranding of the market and how it could be developed i.e. artisan, farmers market, crafts etc.

Cllr Mallaghan stated that a good strategy and action plan is required to revive the market and recommended that other market towns are reviewed as a guide to good practice. M McCullagh advised that she and Mary McKeown, Tourism Manager, are currently involved in researching town centre markets, including areas of good practice. An update will be provided when available.

P Wilson advised that Cookstown Chamber of Commerce would be keen to be involved in generation of ideas and future of the Market.

# b) Business Support

## (i) Mid Ulster Gift Card Scheme

Mid Ulster District Council's Gift Card Scheme is ongoing. Council are currently in the process of procuring an external organisation to assist with the set up and ongoing support of the development and deliver. A minimum contract term will be 3 years with break clauses annually.

It is anticipated that the card will be launched by Christmas 2021. Council will encourage Mid Ulster businesses to sign up and participate for free. M McCullagh noted that the promotion will be closely monitored to ensure there is no confusion between the High Street Voucher Scheme and Mid Ulster Gift Card.

### (ii) Mid Ulster Business Marketing Scheme

A small grants 'Mid Ulster Business Marketing Scheme' opened Monday 2 August 2021 at 9am to Mid Ulster businesses. Eligible businesses can apply for revenue grants of up to £300, on a first come, first served basis until the funding is fully allocated. Applications can only be accepted through completion of an online form.

The Scheme aims to assist businesses with their marketing efforts as they recover from the effects of the pandemic and includes support towards developing improved online presence, click and collect services, promotional activity, merchandising and window displays, use of influencers/vloggers/bloggers etc.

M McCullagh can provide further information to members if required and requested that they encourage businesses to apply to the scheme. C McKenna stated that there has been a good response from businesses to date with 478 Letters of Offer issued to date.

Cllr McNamee sought clarification on how much funding is still available with M McCullagh stating that there is money available for approximately 800 businesses.

## c) Physical Regeneration/Improving Infrastructure

## (i) Rural Regeneration Projects

Under the Rural Development Programme a total of 37 villages will access funding to develop and deliver projects identified through their respective village plans. To date projects have been identified through the village planning process and consultation with the local community groups to determine projects that can access grant aid through the Programme.

A professional led design consultancy team was appointed to commence design schemes for the various projects identified in the villages. A cross council working group has been established for the lifetime of the project. Economic Development Officers are working alongside Technical Services to deliver the schemes. Assistance has been provided to 10 of the 11 villages in the former Cookstown District Council area. Projects have been completed in Ardboe, Ballyronan, Orritor, Lissan, Drumullan, Coagh, Rock, Sandholes, Moortown and Pomeroy. Broughderg is the only outstanding village at present and it is anticipated that it will be complete in the near future.

(ii) Mid Ulster Town and Village Spruce Up Scheme
Mid Ulster Town and Village Spruce Up Scheme offers discretionary grants of up to
75% eligible costs, capped at £5,000 per property for external and/or internal
improvements. Knox and Clayton were appointed to assist in the delivery i.e.
assessment of applications and management and monitoring of the successful
projects.

The Scheme is now in year 3, Phase 3. Phase 1 and Phase 2 projects are now complete. In April 2021, 73 Letters of Offer were issued to businesses under Phase 3 to a total value of £250,000. Members were advised that another scheme cannot be opened until the current scheme ends. M McCullagh stated that the business community still have an appetite for this type of scheme.

### (iii) Shared Space Application

At the 22 September 2020 Cookstown Town Centre Forum meeting a concept drawing was presented for a proposed project under Active Travel for the area adjacent to the Burnavon. This concept was subsequently removed under Active Travel and was successful under a Peace application, and forms one of 5 projects for each of the towns of Mid Ulster.

Comments from the meeting were forwarded accordingly and further discussions have taken place. The location for the proposed project has been reviewed and potentially may result in the relocation to Molesworth Street – in the space adjacent to Molesworth Plaza. ICT team are currently being appointed and drawings are being prepared. Updates will be provided as the scheme progresses. Claire Linney, Head of Community Development, is the main point of contact for the project.

U Marshall requested who would be responsible for maintaining the space once work is complete. M McCullagh advised that insurances and liability issues are currently ongoing with McAleer & Rushe, once clarified members will be updated.

Councillor McNamee thanked M McCullagh for the update.

### 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

## (i) Update on Corporate Council Events 2021

Michael Browne, Head of Tourism, joined the meeting to present on the proposal for corporate events in 2021.

He advised members that his department are reviewing the process for providing corporate events across the district and presenting at the next Council meeting their recommendations on corporate events for Halloween and Christmas. There is normally 17 corporate events held annually throughout the district but due to the current situation with Covid-19 and the restrictions, the delivery of the events has been impossible to facilitate.

In line with this, it has been recommended that both Halloween and Christmas events are provided virtually. This will include the consideration of animation in the town centres prior to Christmas.

M Browne advised that Council are reaching out to community groups across the district with the aim to upscale the events which they currently run i.e. the Magherafelt fire department driving through the town with Santa. On the Saturdays prior to Christmas it has been proposed that street theatre/walkabouts/music may be options.

M Browne thanked the members for their time and stated that an update will be provided when available.

### (ii) Timing of Forum Meetings

P Wilson requested that dates for the next 4 meetings are issued in advance to members. M McCullagh agreed to issue provisional dates at this stage with a view that changes may be required.

### 7. DATE & TIME OF NEXT MEETING

The next date will be set and members will be notified accordingly.

The meeting ended at 1.10pm





# MINUTES OF COOKSTOWN TOWN CENTRE FORUM MEETING HELD TUESDAY 19 OCTOBER 2021 AT 12.30PM VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS

Present:

Paul Wilson Large Independent Retailer

Councillor Mallaghan Mid Ulster District Council

Annette McGahan Mid Ulster PCSP

Sharon McGowan Department for Communities

Tom Jebb Vintners Association

Andrew McConnell Large Retailer

Marc Blake Miconex

Mary McCullagh ) Mid Ulster District Council

Colin McKenna

In attendance: Deborah Ewing ) Mid Ulster District Council

### 8. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received on behalf of Councillor John McNamee, Councillor Trevor Wilson and Councillor Wilbert Buchanan, Mid Ulster District Council; Sean MacMahon, Property Developer; Ursula Marshall, Disability Forum; and Roisin McAllister, Mid Ulster District Council.

Due to the absence of Cllr McNamee, P Wilson will be the acting Chair. P Wilson thanked the members for attending the meeting today.

### 9. MID ULSTER GIFT CARD

M McCullagh advised that the purpose of the meeting is to discuss the Mid Ulster Gift Card Programme. The consultants appointed to design and deliver the programme are Miconex. Marc Blake from Miconex is in attendance to provide an overview of the programme and the Mid Ulster Gift Card.

M Blake delivered a presentation on the Mid Ulster Gift Card. The purpose of the Mid Ulster Gift Card is to encourage people to shop, spend and keep it within Mid Ulster. The Gift Cards are being used in other Council areas which have been successful to date,

with some areas extending the programme. Over 80 towns and cities in the UK operate a local gift card. In Northern Ireland Belfast, Strabane, Enniskillen and Causeway Coast and Glens operate a gift card. It is free for Mid Ulster businesses to register.

The benefits of a local gift card are the associated spend being locked into the Mid Ulster District only; an increase in footfall to the town centre shops and participating businesses; and it also stimulates the local economy.

The design of the Mid Ulster Gift Card was conducted by Council's Communications Team and an image was presented to members.

The Mid Ulster gift card is a private label prepaid mastercard, so it uses existing payment infrastructure. It swipes through the magstripe reader on the PDQ machine. Payment will be received by the normal method from each businesses relevant merchant agreement and there will be no additional fees.

To complete the registration process businesses will be provided with details to complete a transaction of £1 – which will be declined. This will enable the details to be stored on the relevant system and the business account will be activated. An Agreement Letter will also be issued to businesses.

M Blake advised at present that there are approximately 40 businesses across Mid Ulster registered. A website link will be located on the back of the gift cards which when accessed online will show all the participating businesses in the Mid Ulster District.

The gift cards can be purchased online or blank cards with the associated relevant instructions (on how to activate and add money) can be collected at relevant Council pick ups — namely the Burnavon Arts & Cultural Centre, Cookstown; Bridewell, Magherafelt; Hill of the O'Neill, Dungannon.

There will be a dedicated Mid Ulster District Gift Card website – <a href="https://www.midulstergiftcard.com">www.midulstergiftcard.com</a>. The website will enable transactions to be made or to view their balances, registrations for businesses and other general enquiries. A QR code will also be available on the back of the cards which can be scanned to show relevant balances.

M Blake thanked members and requested that they register or promote the Gift Card through various methods i.e. purchasing the Gift Card; becoming an advocate and recommending to other businesses/friends and family etc.

P Wilson thanked M Blake for the presentation and requested that a copy of the presentation is circulated to members to enable them to promote to other businesses throughout the town and Cookstown Chamber of Commerce. He also sought clarification on the minimum and maximum amount for the Gift Card. M Blake advised that the minimum value is £5 and maximum is £500 on a single card. P Wilson opened the floor to questions.

A McConnell asked if the Gift Card is for instore purchases only. He was advised that businesses who offer a click and collect option can register but that the main purpose of the card is to increase footfall into the local businesses.

P Wilson asked where pre-populated cards will be sold. C McKenna advised that at present this is only an online facility and this can be reviewed at a future date dependent on the success of the cards. A McConnell asked if Council would review the possibility of providing pre-paid cards for sale as this would be an easier option and in his opinion would have a better uptake – at present it is easier to go to a large supermarket and take a gift card from the peg to the value that is required. P Wilson concurred stating that the residents of Mid Ulster would use predominately more cash than in other areas of Northern Ireland and the availability of being able to purchase the gift card for cash would be a better option.

C McKenna advised that the Council had agreed to the programme with the understanding that Council staff would not have to deal with cash handling process.

M Blake stated that he can see the value of this in certain areas and advised that Ballinroad in Co. Waterford offer a pick and load option which had a turn around of €200,000 last Christmas. He advised that this is an option which can be further investigated in the future.

Cllr Mallaghan commented that the gift card should be designed to suit the Mid Ulster customer. If this option is not meeting their requirements then it should be further investigated. He requested that a meeting is arranged with JJ Tohill, Director of Finance to discuss the options available. He stated that as a customer he would not purchase this as it would be easier for him to buy straight from the shelf.

A McConnell advised that this is not just based on the cash version but rather the ease of purchasing and having it straight away. An option to buy the gift card to the value and paying by bank card should also be available.

C McKenna advised that this will be investigated and that members will be advised of the outcome in due course.

A range of webinars is also available for businesses or other interested parties to attend and learn more on the Mid Ulster Gift Card. These will take place on the following dates and times:

- Wednesday 20th October at 10am and 5.30pm
- Thursday 21st October at 5.30pm

#### 10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

No other business.

### 11. DATE & TIME OF NEXT MEETING

The next date will be set and members will be notified accordingly.

The meeting ended at 1.05pm

# Appendix 2

# Minutes of Coalisland Town Centre Forum Meeting Monday 27 September 2021 at 17.30pm Microsoft Teams

**Present** 

Cllr Niamh Doris Mid Ulster District Council (Chair)

Cllr Malachy Quinn Cllr N McAleer Mid Ulster District Council

Sharon McGowan Department for Communities
Brian O'Neill Coalisland Credit Union

Dermot McGirr Translink

Francie Molloy MP Coalisland Residents & Community Forum

Raymond O'Neill Coalisland Traders Association

Joe Connaghan PSNI

Ursula Marshall Mid Ulster Disability Forum

In Attendance

Raymond Lowry
Mid Ulster District Council
Michael Browne
Colin McKenna
Mid Ulster District Council

	DISCUSSION		
1	Apologies		
	Cllr Dan Kerr	Mid Ulster District Council	
	Cllr Niall McAleer	Mid Ulster District Council	
	Adrian McCreesh	Mid Ulster District Council	
	Mark Kelso	Mid Ulster District Council	
	Fiona McKeown	Mid Ulster District Council	
	Michael McGibbon	Mid Ulster District Council	
	Aedamar McCrossan	PSNI	
	Peter Waugh	PSNI	
2.	Minutes of Previous Meeting - Monday 28 June 2021		
	Proposed by F Molloy		
	Seconded by Cllr Doris and agreed: -		
	The minutes of the meeting held on Monday 28 June 2021 were a true and accurate record of proceedings.		

# 3. Matters Arising from Previous Meeting – Monday 28 June 2021

O Donnelly updated that he had spoken to owner of the taxi company who admitted one of their vehicles caused the oil spillage and that this vehicle has since been fixed. He also stated that there was nowhere else in town where they could operate from. B O'Neill suggested that the area perhaps could be tarmacked.

# 4. Coalisland Project Updates

### Coalisland Public Realm

F Molloy asked if there could be an art piece or sculpture placed in the area adjacent to Toals Bookmakers. R Lowry stated that there are a lot of approvals to go through when an art piece is erected, there are TAS Approvals, consultation etc which is all very time consuming. M Browne stated that from inception to installation this can take anything up to 2 ½ years.

R O'Neill asked if the one-way system would be removed. He stated that 15 out of the 35 businesses have closed as a result of the one way system, he also stated that there are property owners on Main Street who cannot rent properties out as no one would like to move in there.

R O'Neill asked about the consultation carried out by MUDC at a cost of £20,000 where 2/3 of respondents said they would like Main Street kept as a two-way process. He also stated that at 8am emergency vehicles would not be able to get through the town due to the log-jam on Lineside. Those travelling along Lineside have reported an additional 10-15 minute journey time from Lineside to Landis.

R O'Neill also enquired about CO2 monitors in relation to exhaust fumes and requested they are placed in the town to record levels as he stated that it is damaging to lungs.

R O'Neill stated that F Molloy was 'on the payroll' of Newell Stores to which he subsequently retracted following a request.

He stated that the event space was an area only for drunkards and junkies to sit on and that the real event space for Coalisland was in the Cornmill Car Park. He further requested, under FOI, for a total cost of the car park on Barrack Street.

# Gortgonis Recreation Centre Redevelopment

C Fox provided an update sent by the Head of Leisure, MUDC. An online virtual consultation event took place on Monday 9<sup>th</sup> August with an online consultation magazine made available. Residents in the immediate vicinity received a letter drop during July. Consultations are now closed and consultants are preparing a report based on the feedback received.

### • Town Centre Progress Report

C Fox updated Mid Ulster District Council have opened a new £250K Business Marketing Grant scheme to support the economic recovery of local businesses in the district and encouraged all members to make businesses aware of scheme.

An update was also given on the Department for Economy's High Street Voucher Scheme and also Mid Ulster Gift Card.

F Molloy asked if there could be a town newssheet published with useful information detailed or perhaps a Facebook page for Coalisland. C Fox stated that there previously was a Discover Dungannon Facebook page but this is now defunct as council operate a more corporate process and Council are unable to promote individual businesses. It was advised that the Traders Association are in the best position to operate a Facebook page as they have more freedom to promote businesses. C McKenna updated that Council currently have a business database with over 600 businesses on it. He also stated that there were over 600 applicants to the Marketing Grant.

C Fox updated that Council have received a Letter of Offer for a Coalisland Revitalization Project to include Festive lighting scheme in 2022, El Scheme on Lineside and Brand Development for the town.

### Events

M Browne updated on events stating that council have 17 corporate events over Halloween and Christmas period. He stated that as there is no lifting of restrictions that Council are being cautious in approach. M Browne stated that he took a paper to council two weeks ago where approval was given for an allocation of £5000 to Coalisland which may include a series of workshops etc. The detail will be worked out over the new few weeks. There will however be no fireworks display as per previous years.

F Molloy asked if the Halloween Working Group could be reinstated to discuss proposals.

Head of Tourism also outlined that there would be a virtual switch on in relation to Christmas with animation in the Town Centres over 3 weekends leading up to Christmas.

# Action: O Donnelly to organize meeting of Halloween Working Group on the following Monday

F Molloy stated that there still is an issue with tyre companies dropping tyres off for the youths to burn at Halloween. J Connaghan stated that PSNI had removed tyres from Clonoe are recently but they are unable to remove tyres from private property.

### 5. Any Other Business

C McKenna thanked S McGowan for her assistance on the Revitalization project and getting the Letter of Offer out.

R O'Neill reiterated his previous statements asking if Main Street will be put back to one way system. He also asked for process of Barrack Street Car Park and that co2 and Nitrogen oxide monitors are placed in the town to monitor levels. R O'Neill apologized to F Molloy regarding his earlier statements.

M Quinn stated that the recent clean up of the Canal has made a great difference to the town and that an eye should be kept on this so it doesn't become overgrown again.

C Fox advised that the Department for Finance were getting in touch with businesses in relation to ReVal 2023 to ensure correct revaluations.

Meeting ended at 18.40pm

# 6. Date of Next Meeting

25<sup>th</sup> October 2021





# High Street Task Force Call for Evidence - 2021

# High Street Task Force

# Call for Evidence 2021

# The Vision:

"Sustainable city, town and village centres which are thriving places for people to do business, socialise, shop, be creative and use public services, as well as being great places to live."



# TABLE OF CONTENTS

MINISTERIAL FOREWORD	4
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS	5
KEY DATES AND PURPOSE OF THIS DOCUMENT	6
HOW TO RESPOND	7
PRIVACY, CONFIDENTIALITY AND ACCESS TO CAL FOR EVIDENCE RESPONSES	
INTRODUCTION	9
THE CONTEXT	11
THE TASK	12
THE VISION	13
A SHARED RESPONSIBILITY	13

A CALL FOR ACTION	13
WHAT DOES A GOOD HIGH STREET LOOK LIKE?	14
WHAT ARE THE KEY ISSUES?	15
THEMES AND QUESTIONS	16
Theme 1: Partnerships Theme 1: Questions	
Theme 2: Follow Best Practice Theme 2: Questions	
Theme 3: Investment Theme 3: Questions	
Theme 4: Planning Theme 4: Questions	
Theme 5: Public Realm Theme 5: Questions	
Theme 6: Fiscal - Including Rates Theme 6: Questions	
Theme 7: CapacityTheme 7: Questions	
Theme 8: Energy, Climate Change and Sustainability Theme 8: Questions	
Theme 9: Housing and Other Infrastructure Theme 9: Questions	
Theme 10: Getting To and From the High Street Theme 10: Questions	
Theme 11: TourismTheme 11: Questions	
Theme 12: Digital High Streets Theme 12: Questions	
Theme 13: Rural Settlements Theme 13: Questions	
Theme 14: People, Localism and Well-being Theme 14: Questions	

ANNEX A	31
Privacy Notice	31

# **Ministerial Foreword**

We have a bold, ambitious vision: "Sustainable city, town and village centres which are thriving places for people to do business, socialise, shop, be creative and use public services, as well as being great places to live."

High streets and small businesses are the backbone of our economy and we want to see them thrive now and in the future. They are more than simply places to shop: they are a focal point for the community. People care about their local high streets because they are the centres of their community.

We know that our high streets are changing, and the Executive are committed to helping communities adapt. We also know that restoring the vibrancy of our high streets will take a number of phases over a period of years.

The issues that the High Street Task Force has been considering are found all across our towns and cities, but there cannot be a one-size-fits-all solution. Every high street is different. They each have their own character and personality with traits as unique as the village, town or city where they are located, and, they will need bespoke local solutions.

This call for evidence is an important opportunity for people to have their say and will be an essential step in bringing the vision to life and seeing results "at street level".

We encourage the widest possible engagement and sharing of views and experiences through this call for evidence. Its findings, together with other data, will inform a draft report and recommendations that will be subject to consultation and equality considerations before a final report is presented for agreement by the Executive by spring 2022.

We look forward to your response to this call for evidence and your ongoing engagement.

G. Middleton

Deela Kearrey

# **Acknowledgements**

We would like to thank the wide range of individuals who contributed to the development of this Call for Evidence (CfE). This includes, but is not limited to, colleagues from other Departments and representatives from the business sector, local Government, voluntary and community sectors and professional bodies.

We particularly thank the members of the High Street Task Force:

- Business Alliance
- Department for Agriculture, the Environment and Rural Affairs
- Department for Communities
- Department for Infrastructure
- Department for the Economy
- Department of Finance
- Federation of Small Businesses
- Hospitality Ulster
- Mr Chris Suitor (Business Owner)
- NI Council for Voluntary Action
- NI Committee of the Irish Congress of Trade Unions
- NI Local Government Association
- NI Retail Consortium
- Queen's University Belfast
- Retail NI
- Social Enterprise NI
- SOLACE The Society of Local Authority Chief Executives
- Ulster University
- USDAW The Union of Shop, Distributive and Allied Workers

# **Key Dates and Purpose of this Document**

Opening: 25 October 2021

Closing: 6 December 2021

This CfE is open from 25 October 2021 until 6 December 2021. We are keen to hear from a wide range of bodies, groups and individuals across society.

This CfE is the first stage in an ongoing public engagement process. The CfE document sets out the current understanding of the evidence available relating to high street issues and we invite comments and views on this.

Its publication is supported by a series of focused engagement events, including public workshop sessions.

Responses to the questions in this CfE will be analysed along with other evidence and information to form the basis of policy options for the Executive. A summary of findings will be published on the Executive Office website following the completion of the CfE.

Note that, due to COVID-19 restrictions, all engagement activities may be conducted using a virtual platform.

# **How to Respond**

All responses should arrive no later than 6 December 2021 and early responses are encouraged.

There are questions in each section of the document. Please respond to as many, or as few, as you wish.

There are four options available for response. The online option is the easiest and preferred option. If you wish to request a hard copy, please contact us by email or post.

1. Online – Accessible at:

https://consultations.nidirect.gov.uk/dfc-analytical-services-unit/high-streets-call-for-evidence

- 2. Email highstreet@communities-ni.gov.uk
  - a. With "High Street Call for Evidence 2021" as the subject line.
- 3. Postal Send responses to:

High Street Call for Evidence 2021
High Street Task Force
Level 4
Department for Communities
9 Lanyon Place
Belfast
BT1 3LP

4. Workshops – Details on where and when the workshops will be held will be made available on the Executive Office website and can be accessed here: www.executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk/consultations/call-evidence-high-streettask-force

### Accessibility

We can provide information in alternative formats on request, where reasonably practicable.

We liaise with representatives of young people and disability and minority ethnic organisations and take account of existing and developing good practice. We will respond to requests for information in alternative formats in a timely manner.

We will use a range of communications channels to enable wide access to information. Some members of the public may not have access to a computer to obtain information from websites. The Department will consider a range of communication methods to ensure wide access to its information. We will respond positively to requests for access to information to meet user needs.

# Privacy, Confidentiality and Access to Call for Evidence Responses

The Executive will publish responses on the nidirect website at <a href="https://www.nidirect.gov.uk/">https://www.nidirect.gov.uk/</a>. If a respondent is an individual acting in a private capacity, they should indicate whether or not they wish their name to be withheld or disclosed when responding.

Where responses from companies and individuals responding in a professional capacity are to be published, the Department will remove contact details only.

Responses to this Call for Evidence may be subject to requests under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA) or the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 (EIR). All disclosures will be in line with this legislation. If you feel that information that you provide should be treated as private or confidential, please explain why so that we can take this into consideration.

All personal data will be processed in line with the requirements of the Data Protection Act 2018/UK General Data Protection Regulations (UKGDPR).

For more information, please see our privacy notice Privacy Notice in Annex A.

# Introduction

Our high streets are changing. The way in which we work, live, shop, access services, enjoy leisure and travel is continually changing and moving away from the traditional high street experience. This change has been and continues to be exacerbated by the COVID-19 pandemic. Retail trends, the prevailing economic mood and the broader business landscape create an uncertain backdrop. Businesses, sectors, employees and communities have experienced an unprecedented impact which continues to affect our high streets and beyond.

The Executive Office formed the High Street Task Force (HSTF) with a view to identify the challenges and issues that our high streets face, and to oversee the development of solutions and actions that can be taken to support our high streets with the strategic aim to contribute to the development of thriving and sustainable city, town and village centres. Collectively, the HSTF membership includes a range of business representatives from retail; hospitality; local government; academia; the voluntary and community sector; the culture and arts sector; tourism; and trade unions. Together, they represent considerable experience and expertise, along with economic and social acumen.

The vision of the HSTF is: "Sustainable city, town and village centres which are thriving places for people to do business, socialise, shop, be creative and use public services, as well as being great places to live." It is a vision that will require everyone working together and the broadest possible buy-in from those who live and use our high streets. It will need partnership and a focus on delivery, and it will very much be a long-term project. Transformation will not happen overnight and significant work has already been undertaken in getting us to this point.

Right across society, there is a desire for our high streets to succeed. They are more than simply places to shop: they are a focal point for the community and the HSTF membership will use its networks to ensure a balanced approach that reaches across the entire region.

With this, comes the understanding that it cannot be a one-size-fits-all solution. Every high street is different. They each have their own character and personality, with traits as unique as the village, town or city where they are located, and they will need bespoke local solutions.

We need to seize control of that change and create a new vision of thriving high streets where retail and hospitality, amongst others, can play their part. This vision is about building something new; not about resisting change or reinventing the past. The key lesson from other places is that no single sector can provide all of the solution. We need to see high streets as diverse business ecosystems that meet the needs of communities.

The HSTF appreciates the size and scale of the challenge ahead but does so with an ambition and a desire to succeed.

This Call for Evidence is the first formal stage in the strategy development and your participation is welcomed and encouraged. The responsibility for high streets rests with many and, therefore, the solutions are something that we must design and tackle together.

Making this happen will require substantial institutional, regulatory and policy change. We recognise that the solutions to these deep-rooted challenges require all of us across government to work together in new ways.

# The Context

The problems facing our village, town and city centre high streets predate COVID-19, the 2007 economic crisis and internet shopping. The way people shop and the way that communities use their high streets is changing. This changes the nature of what makes a high street successful. High streets are having to evolve and adapt.

The impact of the coronavirus pandemic and the resultant impact on village, town and city centres has reinforced the need for a coordinated strategic response to both the immediate and longer-term recovery priorities for our town and city centres.

On 23 March 2020, UK high streets, town and city centres effectively closed for business. Most retailers, offices, restaurants, bars, coffee shops, cultural and leisure destinations shut their doors, as only essential businesses were allowed to stay open. Technology has meant that whilst many office-based businesses have been disrupted, working from home has been possible and new ways of working have materialised.

The impact on retail and hospitality has been much more widespread and damaging. Many have looked to new business models, offering take away options, online delivery or digital services. Others furloughed their staff to survive financially. In addition, other sectors, which play a key role in the vibrancy of town and city centres, such as arts and cultural venues, tourist attractions and event venues, have been impacted.

We need a fundamental reinvention of our high streets. It will require new levels of partnership between the Executive, councils, business and wider society to it. Since the start of the pandemic, leaders in our town centres have been managing its impact with the certainty that the 'old normal' is not a recipe for the long-term future. As habits change, our retail sector and high streets must change too.

# The Task

The HSTF has been established to contribute to:-

- developing the strategic approach to delivering the vision and responding to the economic and social challenges facing village, town and city centres;
- building and strengthening the partnerships that will deliver the strategic response; and
- building the capacity needed to achieve the vision.

The HSTF provides the opportunity to shift the perception of the high street away from the traditional economic model and towards a more complex one that addresses social, environmental and economic sustainability.

The HSTF has looked at problems, challenges, and concerns. It has questioned what good practice is; has developed key principles that can be used across any size of high street and has set out outcomes that it wants to see achieved, including sustainable regeneration. It has examined the outputs needed to deliver those outcomes and considered what best practice looks like locally, nationally and internationally.

It has also asked: "What is a high street? What are the key constituents? Who is the client/user? Can we see a clear trajectory? How does density and scale affect the solution, and, looking to the future, what are the key forces acting on the street?"

This is a rare opportunity to set in tow a model of good capacity practice for the next Programme for Government, for example; with locality-based budgets, cross-departmentally and across government tiers, and drawing on existing work such as Rural Catalyst Pilots, Urban Village Renewal and scoping adaptations tailored for and by each settlement.

# The Vision

The vision of the High Street Task Force is:

"Sustainable city, town and village centres which are thriving places for people to do business, socialise, shop, be creative and use public services, as well as being great places to live."

# A Shared Responsibility

The challenges currently faced by village, town and city centres cannot be addressed by one government Department working in isolation. They require action not just by central government Departments but partnership working that also includes councils, non-governmental bodies and the business community.

No matter how good the government policy is, it needs to be implemented properly, and that will only happen if all key stakeholders are 'bought in' – politicians, communities, developers, business and others.

# A Call for Action

The achievement of the HSTF vision will require sustained effort over time; reflected in legislation, policy and strategy, as well as front-line delivery. It will need a collaborative approach, with villages, towns, cities and councils competing for funding. Policies will be required to operate in the same space, multiple funding streams will need a more joined-up approach, and a local focus on delivery will be required. Further to this, we will need to capitalise on uniqueness, build on strengths and recognise that not one size fits all.

# What Does a Good High Street Look Like?

There is a need to define what good practice looks like. However, this cannot be a proscriptive definition but rather should be a set of guiding principles.

A good high street is likely to have many or all of the following characteristics:

- Accessible and connected;
- Easier to get to and move around in;
- Welcoming and safe;
- Has unique characteristics and culture;
- Collaborative, responsible and ongoing;
- Enjoyable;
- Has a diversity of uses and activities;
- Is a nicer place to be;
- Has a better mix of uses so that more people will want to go there, spend time, live and do business there;
- Has found a way of managing them well.

# What are the key issues?

- Recovery from Coronavirus and beyond;
- Developing a new strategic approach;
- Climate change adaptation and mitigation;
- Planning principles;
- Vacancies;
- Housing;
- Public Transport (including active travel);
- Rates;
- Tourism;
- Digital High Streets;
- Rural settlements;
- People, localism and well-being.

# **Themes and Questions**

The 14 themes listed in this Call for Evidence provide an overview of the issues that our high streets currently face. The key considerations and issues have been listed in bullet form to show the initial thoughts gathered so far and set the scene for further ideas to be gathered through the Call for Evidence.

The questions for each theme are then listed and mirror those provided in the online version.

# **Theme 1: Partnerships**

The HSTF will seek to encourage partnerships with public, private and third sector partners, locally, regionally and nationally. This could require the consideration of:

- Government, local authorities, the wider public sector, businesses and communities must put the health of village, town and city centres at the heart of decision making and deliver the best local outcomes, align policies and target available resources to prioritise town centre sites, encouraging vibrancy, equality and diversity.
- Champions are needed to lead the way forward and to involve those who live and work in our town centres in the decision making.
- More coordination and joined-up working, partnership and reorganisation of the key statutory functions is needed to bring about effective change more quickly.
- Correct powers, appropriately devolved, need to be in place to deliver interventions.
- A recognition that this a long-term approach.
- Our councils have a key role in the localism agenda and the Executive need to consider the devolution of regeneration and other powers to them so that they can play a fuller role in the recovery process.
- We need interim solutions.
- We need to determine what has worked well and has not worked.

# **Theme 1: Questions**

- 1. What are the key issues for partnerships?
- 2. What powers should local partnerships have to make them more effective?
- 3. What changes to legislation, policies, processes or procedures could transform partnerships on the high street?

# **Theme 2: Follow Best Practice**

The HSTF approach to developing best practice is to assess good practice from other places and adapt this so that 'best practice' becomes a unique 'right practice' for our local high streets. This could require the consideration of:

- Looking at best practice locally, nationally and internationally.
- The importance of community planning, in which public sector organisations
  work in partnership with the private sector, local communities and the
  community and voluntary sector to identify and solve local problems, improve
  services and implement a shared vision for promoting the well-being of an
  area.

# **Theme 2: Questions**

- 4. What is best practice for the management of the high street?
- 5. What expert help is needed to develop best practice?
- 6. What changes are needed to legislation, procedures and processes to improve best practice and transform community planning on the high street?

# Theme 3: Investment

The high street needs ways of dealing with investment that will support innovation, help renewal and create thriving high streets. Investment is not only needed for buildings and digital infrastructure, but also for developing people and communities. This could require the consideration of:

- More specific funding streams and schemes are required to promote and encourage residential living
- Funding streams and workforces should be aligned.
- Specific funding schemes to promote and encourage wider provision of community services.
- A better understanding and clarity on the availability of funding streams.
- Place-based budgeting.
- The residential Urban Development Grant scheme should be revived.
- More focused funding for village, town and city centre promotions.
- Incentives to deal with long-term vacancies.
- Clarity on priority investment area(s) is needed.

## **Theme 3: Questions**

- 7. What are the key issues for investment?
- 8. Is information on funding easy to find?
- 9. Which of the following funds would support the development of the high street? Pick as many or as few as you wish.
  - a. High Street Transformation
  - b. Residential Living
  - c. Urban Development Grant
  - d. Other (Please comment below)

# **Theme 4: Planning**

In addressing planning for the high street, our challenge will be to contribute to the delivery of a fair and inclusive planning system for people, communities and businesses. This could require a review of the planning system, its impact on the high street and the consideration of:

- Village, town and city centre masterplans.
- Promoting a "Town Centre First" principle to encourage the public sector to continue to invest in town centres and help communities thrive.
- More flexible planning policies are required to enable repurposing.
- Strong diversification of town centres is needed to include, but not limited to: housing, community uses, leisure, offices and outdoor spaces.
- Actions are needed to address vacancy and dereliction on the High Street.
- A five-year moratorium on major out-of-town retail applications should be considered.
- A stricter "town centre first" approach, more Business Improvement Districts (BIDs) and a joined-up approach to regeneration.
- An approach to increase population living and working in our high street.

# **Theme 4: Questions**

- 10. Are you aware of village, town and city centre masterplans?
- 11. What are the key planning issues?
- 12. Would you support a temporary ban on out-of-town retail developments?
  - a. Yes
  - b. No

If yes, for how long?

13. What changes to legislation, policies, processes or procedures could transform high street planning for the better?

# Theme 5: Public Realm

The Public Realm is defined as the space around, between and within buildings that are publicly accessible, including streets, squares, parks and open spaces. These are the everyday spaces that we move through and socialise within and the places where we live, work and play. This could require the consideration of:

- Creating better ways of delivering Public Realm that are cleaner and greener.
- Public Realm "smart" towns with green spaces that are decluttered, ecofriendly, sustainable and better connected.
- Promoting high-quality design to ensure that our town centres provide sustainable, attractive, accessible and safe environments.
- Town centres should be clean, vibrant and attractive if visitors are to be encouraged to visit and stay.

# **Theme 5: Questions**

- 14. What are your views on the high street environment?
- 15. What could be done to change the perception of the Public Realm?
- 16. What improvements are needed in your high street?
- 17. What is a priority for Public Realm projects in the high street?
- 18. What would make town-centre living more attractive?

# **Theme 6: Fiscal - Including Rates**

Fiscal policy is how government taxation and spending policies are used to influence economic conditions. This affects demands on employment, inflation, goods and services, and economic growth. This could require the consideration of:

- Reform the tax system to ensure that sufficient revenue to pay for public services whilst ensuring that the tax burden is fair.
- A fundamental reform and review of commercial and business rates in village, town and city centres. (NI Reval 2023)
- A targeted approach to rates for small businesses.
- Our high streets have the highest vacancy rates in the UK. We need to develop a policy response to address vacancies and rates.

# **Theme 6: Questions**

- 19. What tax and rating reforms are needed to help stimulate the high street economy?
- 20. What actions should be taken to reduce vacancy rates on the high street?
- 21. Do you believe that legislation is required to change fiscal policy?

# **Theme 7: Capacity**

Capacity refers to the built, social, spatial, and infrastructural strengths and opportunities to transform to produce significant and measurable change. This could require the consideration of:

- A capacity mapping and pilots exercise similar to that undertaken by the HSTF in England should be developed for our region, utilising Ministerial Advisory Group data and knowledge, and resourced and contemporised by HSTF funds. This should be council area coordinated and community led.
- Greater High Street inclusion for Community Wealth Building Pilots, community planning, with greater formal and allocated cross-departmental investment in each. Community Wealth Building Pilots are an investment model to enable local communities to increase co-operative asset ownership, anchor jobs and resources locally, and ensure local community economic stability and democratic control.
- Develop HSTF capacity by investment in hubs by location, and, if desired at community level.

### **Theme 7: Questions**

- 22. What is the priority for capacity mapping and pilot exercises?
- 23. What capacity skills need to be developed?
- 24. What should be created to support the development of high street capacity?
  - a. Community funds
  - b. Locality budgets
  - c. Sector schemes
  - d. Expert advice
  - e. Workshops
  - f. Collaborative approach
  - g. Other (Please comment below)

# Theme 8: Energy, Climate Change and Sustainability

Our environment is our most important asset and is crucial to each and every one of us. It is one of the main reasons that people from other countries and regions visit, bringing money into the local economy. It affects our economy, our health and well-being, and it facilitates social interaction. Building, through construction, renovation and repurposing, also plays a key role in emissions reduction. This could require the consideration of:

- The carbon impact of interventions during design, to reduce the carbon footprint and increase sustainable development.
- Carbon reduction measures in existing and future infrastructures in our high streets should be dynamically addressed.
- Blue-green infrastructures, which are strategically planned networks of natural and semi-natural areas to enhance the biodiversity designed and managed to support a wide range of ecosystem services, could assist with the greening of our urban environments, facilitate better water management and support safer, cleaner, sustainable spaces. This will allow interconnectivity, provide recreation spaces and help communities to connect and to thrive economically and socially.
- Examine incentives for repurposing existing buildings to address embodied energy, increase energy efficiency and use of renewable energy.

#### Theme 8: Questions

- 25. What actions should be adopted to provide greener urban environments?26. What incentives should there be for repurposing buildings? (Tick as many
  - or as few as you wish)
    - a. Environmental grants
    - b. Loans
    - c. Reduced rates
    - d. Other (if you pick "Other" please expand on your answer)
- 27. Should existing buildings, including our heritage assets, play an enhanced role in transforming the High Street?
  - a. Yes
  - b. No

# **Theme 9: Housing and Other Infrastructure**

Good quality, affordable and sustainable housing is central to reducing housing stress, homelessness and improving housing solutions for the most vulnerable. This could require the consideration of:

- Policies and strategies to address quality, quantity and availability of housing to encourage people to live in and around high streets.
- We should ensure that these are not just transient communities but that they
  are attractive to families.
- We should consider space standards, access to services and the living over the shops scheme.

### Theme 9: Questions

- 28. What strategies are needed to encourage people to live in and around the high street?
- 29. What key services should be available for high street residents?
  - a. Health
  - b. Housing
  - c. Education
  - d. Leisure
  - e. Other (if you pick "Other" please expand on your answer)
- 30. How do we engage communities more effectively?
- 31. How will housing developments improve areas of deprivation in high streets, rural villages, town and city centres?

# Theme 10: Getting To and From the High Street

Getting to and within villages, towns and cities is at the heart of urban regeneration and positively impacts local and regional economies. It unlocks development potential and as a result, many places and communities have seen increased regeneration, investment and employment. This could require the consideration of:

- Ensure that our town centres are well served with public transport provision and supporting infrastructure.
- Promote policies to encourage walking, cycling and the accessibility and quality of environment. This could link to the 15-minute neighbourhood concept.
- Maintain and improve accessibility to, and within, village, town and city centres.
- Parking, including issues such as charging, free or time-limited parking, especially in the levelling-up context.
- Reduce the appeal of commuter and out-of-town parking.
- Incentivise employers to promote the use of public transport.

#### **Theme 10: Questions**

- 32. How do you get to your high street? (Tick all that apply)
  - a. Walk
  - b. Car
  - c. Bus
  - d. Train
  - e. Cycle
  - f. Taxi
  - g. Other (if you pick "Other" please expand on your answer)
- 33. What would make your journey to and from your high street easier?
- 34. What changes to legislation, policies, processes or procedures would encourage walking and cycling?
- 35. What are your views on high street parking?

# Theme 11: Tourism

Tourism is a major contributor to the economic well-being of our villages, towns and cities. Its development could include:

- A review of policy and regulations including support for hotels.
- Recognising the importance of sustainable town centres to meet the
  expectations of the tourist of the future. This will mean being able to provide a
  critical mass of services for accommodation, hospitality outlets and a thriving
  night-time economy.
- Develop the unique and visitor attractiveness of our high streets and remodel their marketing to reflect that.

## **Theme 11: Questions**

- 36. How do we engage with communities to promote tourism?
- 37. What changes to legislation, policies, processes or procedures should be made to develop tourism on the high street?
- 38. Are you aware of an innovative tourism project that could help your high street?

# **Theme 12: Digital High Streets**

Online shopping has impacted our high streets. As well as the opportunities, consideration of the concerns and issues could include:

- Complementing existing business models to allow additional flexibility and resilience to react and survive during what are still uncertain times. Going online will also open up opportunities to reach new markets and new consumer demand.
- In addition to online innovation and diversification, the high street needs to be offering something different that cannot be delivered or experienced online.
- We need data-driven insights into the social media conversations that matter
  with ways to understand the audience and how to make better connections to
  reach them, such as their preferences.
- Promoting local products, services and trades.
- Considering the potential for strategies such as data and IT training.

## **Theme 12: Questions**

- 39. What aspects of a digital high street are important?
- 40. What digital innovations would help your high street?
- 41. What more needs to be done to improve digital skills?

## **Theme 13: Rural Settlements**

Rural development is vital not just for individuals in rural areas but also for economic growth. Rural development will help improve productivity and stability in social and economic development. It enhances the quality of life and financial well-being of individuals, specifically those living in rural areas, but it also has major impacts on those in urban environments. This could require the consideration of:

- Providing support for rural settlements, including consideration of the social, environmental and economic role of settlements in a new era of connected working.
- Maximising the opportunities of the Department for the Economy-led Project Stratum that will bring high-speed broadband and connectivity to rural settlements.
- Invest in and provide a tailored and seamless approach.
- Village high street development

#### Theme 13: Questions

- 42. What changes to legislation, process and procedures are needed for village developments?
- 43. How could funding for rural settlements be made easier?
- 44. What innovative initiatives would improve village economies?

# Theme 14: People, Localism and Well-being

Places need to be compelling, to encourage communities to support economies, products and services that promote and improve the health and well-being of residents and the wider community. People need to feel connected, and community networks can support these links. This could include:

- The High Streets Task Force in England describes this regeneration framework as four Rs: repositioning, reinventing, rebranding and restructuring. These 'four Rs' require a new vision, a changed offer to consumers, better stakeholder communication and changing the governance of our high streets.
- Part of the solution to this challenge lies in fully developing and implementing the concept of 'localism' to repurpose our village, town and city centres as unique hubs at the heart of our community.
- Localism is not just about supporting independent retailers; it is also about empowering people and communities to reshape and repurpose their local villages, towns and city centres and reinvigorate the leadership model.
- Considering the impact of the Living Wage on equality and on people wanting to work on the high street.

#### **Theme 14: Questions**

- 45. Are you aware of any initiatives that would improve localism in your community?
- 46. What is the most important aspect for creating well-being in the community?

Annex A

# **Privacy Notice**

**High Street Task Force (HSTF)** 

**Data Controller Name:** Department for Communities

Address: Causeway Exchange, 1 -7 Bedford Street, Belfast BT2 7EG

Email: <a href="mailto:DPO@communities-ni.gov.uk">DPO@communities-ni.gov.uk</a>

### Why are you processing my personal information?

The High Street Call for Evidence, launched on 25<sup>th</sup> October 2021, seeks evidence, data and views on High Street issues. The lawful basis for processing data provided to the Department during this consultation is in the UK GDPR at Article 6(1)(e) and Article 9(2)(g)). The personal data collected in this consultation exercise will be used for analysis and reporting of consultation responses.

#### Which categories of personal data are you processing?

The personal data we are expecting to receive and handle will consist of your name, address, email address, and any additional personal data you provide in your responses. If you are responding as a commercial/business entity, then some elements of your contact details may not be personal data.

### Where do you get my personal data from?

If we hold your personal data in relation to this Call for Evidence, then you will have sent it to us when you submitted your consultation response.

#### Do you share my personal data with anyone else?

During the Call for Evidence analysis, responses will analysed and responses may be published on the Department for Communities website.

31

### Do you transfer my personal data to other countries?

No.

### How long to do you keep my personal data?

The data you provide in your response will be retained on the Department's Record Management system for seven years in line with the Department's Retention and Disposal Schedule.

### What rights do I have?

- You have the right to obtain confirmation that your data is being processed and access to your personal data.
- You are entitled to have personal data rectified if it is inaccurate or incomplete.
- You have the right to have personal data erased and to prevent the processing of personal data in specific circumstances.
- You have the right to 'block 'or suppress the processing of personal data, in specific circumstances.
- You have the right to data portability, in specific circumstances.
- You have the right to object to the processing, in specific circumstances.
- You have rights in relation to automated decision making and profiling.

### How do I complain if I am not happy?

If you are unhappy with how any aspect of this privacy notice, or how your personal data is being processed, please contact the Department's Data Protection Officer at: <a href="mailto:DPO@communities-ni.gov.uk">DPO@communities-ni.gov.uk</a>

If you are still not happy, you have the right to lodge a complaint with the Information Commissioner's Office (ICO):

## **Information Commissioner's Office**

Wycliffe House

Water Lane

Wilmslow

Cheshire SK9 5AF

Tel: 0303 123 1113

Email: <a href="mailto:casework@ico.org.uk">casework@ico.org.uk</a>

https://ico.org.uk/global/contact-us

Available in alternative formats.

© Crown Copyright 2021





# Appendix 4

# Rural Business Development Grants Scheme 2021 - successful applicants

Rurai busilless bevelopilletit d	lants	Jeneme	ZOZI SUCCESSIUI (
			W= withdrawn by applicant following
Organisation	Grant	Award	LOO issue
PVS Manufacturing Ltd	£	4,999.00	
Brocagh Precision Engineering	£	3,945.00	
Elite physiotherapy Ltd	£	4,999.00	
70 degrees catering	£	2,942.39	
Power to Switch Ltd	£	1,734.58	
Divine Photography	£	750.00	W
CV Engineering	£	3,897.00	
Moocha Kombucha	£	4,999.00	
Murphy Joinery	£	4,999.00	
AJT Transport Consultancy Ltd	£	1,210.00	W
Kelly Carpentry & Joinery	£	4,950.00	
ISO Hydraulics Limited	£	4,999.00	
HBK Architects	£	1,530.28	
Chefskills Online	£	1,439.49	
Adrian McCann t/a Agribarn	£	4,900.00	
Duggan Engineering	£	4,245.00	
Cady Ltd	£	4,975.68	
Blackwater Medical	£	4,999.00	W
FCC Fabrications Ltd	£	4,999.00	
Beechfield Flower farm	£	1,675.98	
John Forsythe Machinery	£	4,999.00	
MCK Splashbacks	£	2,707.40	
Oaklea Kitchens Ltd	£	4,975.00	
Origin 7 Ltd	£	2,437.20	
Embrace Tours Ltd	£	659.49	
Phelim Devlin t/a Cotlane Insurance Ser	£	4,445.00	
Cajera Hair Designs	£	1,301.27	
MCD B&J Services	£	4,150.00	
W Ferson Joinery	£	1,938.00	
McGuckin Plumbing and Heating.	£	3,122.82	
Osbert Whyte Contracting	£	2,872.50	
New Landscapes	£	1,585.00	
J McEldowney Joinery	£	3,168.47	
i-customise	£	4,999.00	
CM Civil Engineering Ltd	£	4,999.00	
Installations of Light	£	4,996.98	
CAP Interiors	£	4,999.00	
BMK Plumbing and Heating	£	4,610.12	
Annie's Delight	£	711.01	
Kyle Martin Engineering	£	653.75	
R-Two Fitness	£	2,925.00	
Kelso Car Sales	£	4,999.00	
McGahan Engineering	£	4,056.50	
INICOGNAL ENGINEERING	<u> </u>	+,050.50	

R S Motors	£ 1,936.50
Beechtree Garden Centre Ltd	,
AMK Aquaculture	£ 3,498.00 £ 1,433.60
Interior Building Solutions Ltd	f 929.91
Christopher O'Kane Fencing	f 4,999.00
P McKenna Motors	£ 844.34
Eugene Muldoon Financial Services	f 4,158.98
D Sloan Engineering Ltd	£ 4,369.00
Koa Gym Limited	£ 1,961.00
Neil Irvine Design Ltd	f 1,708.30
Petrina O'Neill Childcare	,
	,
An Croi	£ 1,349.98
Jill Cake's	£ 1,705.79
Hillside Service Station	£ 3,019.37
Mulholland Plant Hire	£ 4,999.00
Aughrim Engineering	£ 4,999.00
Malachy Devlin Ltd	£ 2,598.75
Boyle's Bar, Mayogall	£ 2,798.40
Smyth Building & Joinery Contractors Ltd	£ 2,302.50
C G Quinn	£ 1,650.00
Barry Turner	£ 3,375.00
OK Hospitality Ltd T/A The Taphouse Ba	£ 3,966.03
J & S McKee	f 4,997.50 f 2.046.47
Straw Garden	,
Sperrin Skincare Ltd	£ 505.99
Springhill Car body Repairs	f 4,999.00 f 4,950.00
Print Engine Tyrone Farmers Market Ltd	,
The Lower House Bar	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
CK Car sales	,
ROC Contracts Ltd	£ 3,592.50 £ 4,999.00
DMAC Truck and Trailer	,
	£ 3,937.50
M Boyle	£ 4,800.00
NK Engineering	£ 4,625.00
Streamline Joinery and Construction	£ 4,750.00
Cookstown Print and Design	£ 3,759.00
Alternative Hair Solutions	£ 1,866.00
CrossFit Balor	£ 2,519.46
LMA	£ 1,395.00
Box IT Ireland	£ 3,497.50
Burrows Engineering Ltd	£ 4,999.00
Benburb Productions	£ 4,999.00
AMN Manufacturing Ltd	£ 2,400.00
Rahoran Ltd	£ 3,447.37
Wellwood Adami Ltd.	£ 3,749.59
R McConville	£ 2,577.00
Kevin Mullan	£ 4,920.00
Pretty Robin Boutique	£ 964.10
Sidebar Joe	£ 1,758.58

Furniture Store Ltd	£	4,750.00	
	£	306,513.67	